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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT
This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the information contained in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations", as well as information contained in “Risk Factors” in Item 1A and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We intend that
these forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors created by those provisions. Forward-looking
statements are generally written in the future tense and/or are preceded by words such as “will,” “may,” “should,” “forecast,”
“could,” “expect,” “suggest,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” or other similar words. Forward-looking statements include
statements regarding (1) our revenue levels, including the commercial success of our Customer Specific Standard
Products, or CSSPs, and new products, (2) the conversion of our design opportunities into revenue, (3) our
liquidity, (4) our gross profit and breakeven revenue level and factors that affect gross profit and the breakeven
revenue level, (5) our level of operating expenses, (6) our research and development efforts, (7) our partners and
suppliers and (8) industry trends.
The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report involve a number of risks and uncertainties, many of
which are outside of our control. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from projected results
include, but are not limited to, risks associated with (i) the conversion of CSSP design opportunities into revenue;
(ii) the commercial and technical success of our CSSPs and new products such as ArcticLink®, ArcticLink II,
ArcticLink III, PolarPro® and PolarPro II, and our successful introduction of products and CSSPs incorporating
emerging technologies or standards; (iii) the adverse effects of the slow recovery from the recent worldwide economic
downturn; (iv) the liquidity required to support our future operating and capital requirements; (v) our ability to
accurately estimate quarterly revenue; (vi) our dependence on our relationships with our foundries each of which
manufactures wafers for different types of products; (vii) our dependence upon single suppliers to fabricate and
assemble our products; (viii) our expectations about market and product trends; (ix) our future plans for partnerships
and collaborations; and (x) our ability to forecast demand for our products. Although we believe that the assumptions
underlying the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are reasonable, any of the assumptions
could be inaccurate, and therefore there can be no assurance that such statements will be accurate. The risks,
uncertainties and assumptions referred to above that could cause our results to differ materially from the results
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those discussed under the
heading “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A hereto and the risks, uncertainties and assumptions discussed from time to
time in our other public filings and public announcements. All forward-looking statements included in this document
are based on information available to us as of the date hereof. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the
forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a
representation by us or any other person that the results or conditions described in such statements or our objectives
and plans will be achieved. Furthermore, past performance in operations and share price is not necessarily indicative
of future performance. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
As used herein, "QuickLogic", the "Company", "we", "our" and similar terms include QuickLogic Corporation and its
subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise.

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

Overview

QuickLogic Corporation was founded in 1988 and reincorporated in Delaware in 1999. We develop and market low
power customizable semiconductor solutions that enable customers to add new features, extend battery life, and
improve the visual experience with their mobile, consumer and enterprise products. We are a fabless semiconductor
company that designs, markets, and supports primarily Customer Specific Standard Products, or CSSPs, and,
secondarily, Field Programmable Gate Arrays, or FPGAs, associated design software and programming hardware. Our

Edgar Filing: QUICKLOGIC CORPORATION - Form 10-K

4



CSSPs are customized semiconductor solutions created from our new solution platforms including ArcticLink® III,
ArcticLink II, ArcticLink, PolarPro® II, PolarPro, and Eclipse II (all of which fall into our new product category); our
mature products include primarily pASIC® 3, QuickRAM®  and QuickPCI, as well as royalty revenue, programming
hardware and design software.

CSSPs are complete, customer-specific solutions that include a unique combination of our silicon solution platforms,
proven system blocks, or PSBs, custom logic, software drivers, and in some cases, firmware, and application software.
All of our solution platforms are standard silicon products and must be programmed to be effective in a system. Our
PSBs range from intellectual property, or IP, which improves multimedia content, such as our Visual Enhancement
Engine, or VEE technology, and Display Power Optimizer technology, or DPO, to IP which implements commonly
used mobile system interfaces, such as Low Voltage Differential Signaling, or LVDS, Mobile Industry Processor
Interface, or MIPI, Secure Digital Input Output, or SDIO, and Universal Serial Bus 2.0 On-The-Go, or USB 2.0 OTG,
to IP that accelerates sideloading speeds in mobile devices.

3
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We provide complete solutions by first architecting the solution jointly with our customer's engineering group,
selecting the appropriate solution platform and PSBs, providing custom logic, integrating the logic, programming the
device with the PSBs and/or firmware, providing software drivers or application software required for the customer's
application, and participating with the customer on-site during integration, verification and testing.

We pioneered and introduced CSSPs in the first quarter of 2007. CSSPs are developed for specific power sensitive
applications that have differentiated features in terms of IP, intelligent data processing or connectivity requirements.
Our customers value (i) our ability to provide a range of CSSPs from a single platform design by incorporating
different features in the programmable logic of our solution platforms; (ii) the expertise we bring to design our CSSPs
to optimize for power and performance within our customers' constraints; and (iii) the flexibility of programmable
logic to address specific hardware-based product requirements. By providing customized solutions for our customers,
we increase their ability to meet the time-to-market and time-in-market pressures associated with their markets.

The majority of our CSSP solution platforms and our other product offerings, are based on our patented ViaLink®
metal-to-metal programmable technology. ViaLink provides flexible energy efficient devices and solutions that
deliver the high performance, high reliability, IP security and instant-on features that our customers value.

During 2009, our engineering teams developed multiple CSSPs using the PolarPro II platform for the 3G USB modem
segment that entered into production during the fourth quarter of 2009 and accounted for a significant percentage of
our revenue during 2010, 2011 and 2012.

In 2012 we introduced our third generation solution platform family, ArcticLink III VX, which embeds our VEE/DPO
technologies as well as different combinations of LVDS and/or MIPI. ArcticLink III VX combines mixed signal
physical layers and hard-wired logic on one device. We also introduced our fourth generation solution platform
family, ArcticLink III BX. The BX family is identical to the VX family with the exception of the VEE/DPO
technologies. The BX family was introduced to provide potential customers with the ability to adopt needed display
bridge requirements while evaluating benefits of our VEE/DPO technologies. Mixed signal capability supports the
trend toward high-speed serial connectivity in the mobile applications where designers benefit from lower pin counts,
simplified printed circuit boards, or PCBs, layout, simplified PCB interconnect and reduced signal noise. Adding
hard-wired intellectual property enables us to deliver more logic per die area at the most power-efficient levels in a
small form factor package.

We have changed our manufacturing strategies to reduce the cost of our silicon solution platforms to enable their use
in high volume, mass customization products. Our PolarPro II and PolarPro solution platforms include an innovative
logic cell architecture which enables us to deliver twice the programmable logic in the same die size. Our ArcticLink
II and ArcticLink solution platforms combine mixed signal physical layers and hard-wired logic alongside
programmable logic. Our ArcticLink III solution platform is manufactured on an advanced process node where we can
benefit from smaller die sizes. We typically implement sophisticated logic blocks and mixed signal functions in
hard-wired logic because it is very cost effective and energy efficient. ArcticLink II and ArcticLink combine cost
effective physical layers and hard-wired logic with the flexibility, time-to-market and time-in-market advantages of
programmable logic. We have developed small form factor packages, which are less expensive to manufacture and
include smaller pin counts. Reduced pin counts result in lower costs associated with our customer's printed circuit
board space and routing. Our ability to sell programmed die as CSSPs greatly reduces our costs, allowing us to
participate in high volume opportunities. In addition, we have dramatically reduced the time we require to program
and test our devices, which has reduced our costs and lowered the capital equipment required to program and test our
devices. We expect to continue to invest in silicon solution platforms and manufacturing technologies which make us
cost effective for high volume applications.
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In addition to working directly with our customers, we partner with other companies that are experts in certain
technologies to develop additional intellectual property, reference platforms and system software to provide
application solutions. We also work with mobile processor manufacturers and companies that supply storage,
networking or graphics components for embedded systems. The depth of these relationships varies depending on the
partner and the dynamics of the end market being targeted, but is typically a co-marketing relationship that includes
joint account calls, promotional activities and/or engineering collaboration and developments, such as reference
designs.

In addition to competition in the semiconductor market, two other factors affect our future growth: an expected
increase in revenue should our CSSP strategy prove successful and an expected decline in revenue from mature
products. CSSP revenue is included in our new product revenue. New products contributed 40% of total revenue for
the year ended December 30, 2012. In order to maintain or grow our revenue from its current level, we depend upon
increased revenue from our existing products, especially CSSPs, and the development and marketing of additional
new products and solutions.

4
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Available Information

Our corporate headquarters are located at 1277 Orleans Drive, Sunnyvale, California 94089. We can be reached at
(408) 990-4000, and our website address is www.quicklogic.com. The information on our website is not incorporated
herein by reference and is not a part of this Form 10-K. Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Market under
the symbol “QUIK”. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K
and amendments to such reports are available, free of charge, on our website home page as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such materials with, or furnish them to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC. Copies of the materials filed by the Company with the SEC are also available at the Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C., 20549. Information regarding the operation of the Public
Reference Room is available by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Reports, proxy and information statements and
other information regarding issues that we file electronically with the SEC are also available on the SEC's website at
www.sec.gov.

Industry Background

Consumer Electronics, or CE, products are a strong growth market for semiconductor products, and the needs of this
market bring a unique set of requirements. One important trend in this market is toward mobile, handheld devices with
wireless capability. Important industry trends affecting the large market for mobile devices include the need for high
bandwidth that enables the same user experience consumers are accustomed to on the personal computer, or PC, such
as internet browsing, social networking and streaming video, product miniaturization and the need to increase battery
life. Many of these product requirements were driven from the launch and widely publicized success of the Apple
iPhone and Apple iPad. While there continue to be additional deployments in the network operator infrastructure that
support the bandwidth required for these use cases, there are demographic and geographic specific product features
that share this infrastructure. These product features place a burden on the designers and manufactures of these mobile
CE products as they try to tailor multiple products with limited engineering resources. Lastly, the fast pace at which
consumer taste for these features changes exacerbates the development challenges and risks in launching successful
products to the marketplace.

Another important trend is shrinking product life cycles. This drives a need for faster, lower risk product development.
There is intense pressure on the bill of materials, or BOM, cost of these devices, including per unit component costs
and non-recurring development costs. As more people experience the advantages of a mobile lifestyle at home, they
demand the same advantages in their professional lives. We believe that the trend toward mobile, handheld products
that have a PC-like user experience, small form factor and maximize battery life will be prominent in the computing,
industrial, medical and military markets. One such example is the trend of Notebook and Laptop makers to offer the
new, smaller form factor Tablets.

These industry trends are shifting the demand among different classes of core silicon. The three main classes of
non-memory core silicon are:

•
Application Specific Standard Products, or ASSPs, other than processors, are fixed function devices designed to
address a relatively narrow set of applications. These devices typically integrate a number of common peripherals or
functions and the functionality of these devices is fixed prior to wafer fabrication;

•
Programmable Logic Devices, or PLDs are general purpose devices, which can be used by a variety of electronic
systems manufacturers and are customized after purchase for a specific application. FPGAs are a subset of this
category and are typically used to implement complex system functions; and

•
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Application Specific Integrated Circuits, or ASICs, are custom devices designed and fabricated to meet the needs of
one specific application for one end-customer. Structured ASICs, a sub-category of ASICs, provide a limited amount
of custom content to broaden the applicability of a device for additional applications. 

ASSPs are offered broadly to the market, making it challenging for a system designer to create differentiated products
from these devices alone. In many situations the available ASSPs may not directly implement the desired function and
the system designer is required to use a combination of ASSPs to achieve the desired result at the expense of increased
cost, product size and power consumption. As standards evolve or new standards are developed, ASSPs may not be
available to implement desired functions.

System designers can customize their products using programmable logic or ASICs. The competitive dynamic
between these classes of core silicon are well understood. High development risks, development costs and opportunity
costs are incurred when using ASICs to produce custom devices with very low unit production cost. Suppliers of
programmable logic devices, which have lower development and market risks and development costs relative to
ASICs, have aggressively reduced

5
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the unit cost of their products over time, making programmable logic devices the solution of choice for custom
products unless the volume is very high. These cost reduction efforts have significantly increased the volume required
to justify the total cost of an ASIC.

Consumer devices incorporate complex, rapidly changing technology, require rapid product proliferation, and have
short product life and development cycles. Therefore, most mobile designers design their products from a base
platform, or reference design, provided to them by the vendor of the processor they have selected for their design. To
differentiate their products from their competition, Original Equipment Manufacturers, or OEMs and Original Design
Manufacturers, or ODMs, may require some level of customization at either the hardware or software level. Designers
have only a few viable options to modify the base platform for their needs. Since mobile system designers require
very low power consumption to maximize battery life in their applications, the high power consumption of FPGAs is
incompatible with their design goals. This effectively limits the average mobile system designer to ASSPs and small
PLDs, creates a virtual level playing field among mobile system designers, and makes product proliferation and
differentiation extremely hard to achieve. ASICs with their long development cycles, long lead times and high
non-recurring development costs are only used in very high volume mainstream consumer products.

The traditional military and industrial markets are well served by existing core silicon. Much of this market uses
complex ASSPs since price, power and size are not particularly critical design considerations. When there is a strong
need for a custom solution in high volume applications, designers turn to an ASIC and, in low to medium volume
applications, they use FPGAs. QuickLogic FPGAs have a loyal following in certain segments of these markets,
particularly when instant-on, energy efficiency, high reliability or intellectual property security is important. These
markets are expected to follow a typical mature product trend, as compared with the predicted growth in our CSSP
business in the consumer market.

Markets and Product Technology

We market CSSPs primarily to mobile device OEMs and ODMs. CSSPs are complete solutions incorporating our
ArcticLink II and III VX & BX, ArcticLink II CX, ArcticLink, PolarPro II, PolarPro, and Eclipse II solution
platforms, packaging, PSBs, custom logic, software drivers and our architecture consulting. We partner with target
customers in our focus markets to architect and design CSSPs and to integrate and test our CSSPs in our customers'
products. A CSSP can be based on our programmable technology, which enables customized designs, low power,
flexibility, rapid time-to-market, longer time-in-market and lower total cost of ownership. From a mobile system
designer's perspective, a CSSP's function is known and complete, and consequently can be designed into systems with
a minimum amount of effort and risk. We are capable of providing complete solutions because of our investment in
developing the low power PSBs and software required to implement specific functions. Because we are involved with
our customers at the definition stage of their products, we are able to architect solutions that typically have more than
one PSB, absorbing more functionality traditionally implemented with multiple ASSPs. In cases where our CSSP has
multiple PSBs, significant system performance or battery life improvements can be realized by enabling direct data
transfers between the PSBs. In some cases, we develop the PSBs and either software or firmware ourselves and, in
other cases, we utilize third parties to develop the mixed signal physical layers, logic and/or software.

We market CSSPs to OEMs and ODMs offering differentiated mobile products, and to processor vendors wishing to
expand their served available market. Our target mobile markets include: Tablets, Smartphones, Mobile Enterprise,
Pico Projectors, Broadband Access Data cards, Secure Access Data cards. Our solutions typically fall into one of three
categories: Display & Visual Enhancement, Smart Connectivity, or Security.

Our new products are also being used in applications in our traditional markets, such as data communications,
instrumentation and test and military-aerospace, where customers value the low power consumption, instant-on, IP
security, reliability and fast time-to-market of our products.
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The fact that we use our programmable technology to customize these CSSPs provides two advantages over
conventional ASSPs that are based on ASIC technology. Foremost is the fact that our CSSPs can be tailored for a
specific customer's requirements. Once we have developed PSBs, it is easy to combine PSBs and utilize the remaining
programmable logic to provide a unique set of features to a mobile system designer, or to add other functions to the
CSSP, such as Universal Asynchronous Receiver Transmitter, or UARTs, keyboard scanning functions, and Serial
Peripheral Interface, or SPI ports, which minimizes system size and cost. We are able to develop these CSSPs from a
common solution platform, and partner with system designers to implement a range of solutions, or products, that
address different geographic and market requirements. Finally, by using programmable technology instead of ASIC
technology, we reduce the development time, development risk and total cost of ownership and are able to bring
solutions to market far more quickly than other custom silicon alternatives.

6
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By using CSSPs, PSBs, and our in-depth architecture knowledge, we can deliver energy efficient custom solutions
that blend the benefits of traditional ASSPs with the flexibility, product proliferation, differentiation and low total cost
of ownership advantages of programmable logic.

Our product technology consists of four major elements:

First, our programmable logic allows us to hardware customize our platforms. Our programmable logic uses
proprietary and patented technology to meet the specific needs of mobile products: low standby power, low dynamic
power, small form factor, single chip solutions that power cycle easily and quickly. Hardware customization gives our
devices the ability to execute key actions faster than software implementations, and at lower power.

Second, our ArcticLink solution platform combines mixed signal physical layers, hard-wired logic and programmable
logic on one device. Mixed signal capability supports the trend toward serial connectivity in mobile applications,
where designers benefit from lower pin counts, simplified PCB layout, simplified PCB interconnect and reduced
signal noise. Adding hard-wired intellectual property enables us to deliver more logic at lower cost and lower power;
while the programmable logic allows us to provide solutions that can be rapidly customized to differentiate products,
add features and reduce system development costs. This combination of mixed signal, hard-wired logic and
programmable logic enables us to deliver low cost, small form factor solutions that can be customized for particular
customer or market requirements while lowering the total cost of ownership. The high routing density and flexibility
of our ViaLink technology is critical to the efficient interface between the hard-wired logic and the programmable
logic. Our ArcticLink II CX solution platform includes an embedded 32-bit RISC CPU. By embedding
QuickLogic-developed firmware, we can enable software differentiation as well as hardware differentiation for certain
applications.

Third, we develop and integrate PSBs which are innovative IP cores, intelligent data processing IP cores, or standard
interfaces used in mobile products. We offer:

•Display and Visual Enhancement PSBs such as VEE, DPO or LCD controller interfaces, LVDS and MIPI;

•Network PSBs such as High Speed USB 2.0 OTG, high speed Universal Asynchronous Receiver/Transmitters, orUARTs, to enable Bluetooth 2.x + EDR;

•Storage PSBs such as Secure Digital High Capacity, or SDHC, boot from managed NAND, Hard Disk Drive and highperformance compact flash interfaces; and

•Other PSBs such as I2S, PCM, I2C, encryption, unique ID for digital rights management, or DRM, and generalpurpose interfaces.

Fourth, our unique customer engagement model enables us to develop complete solutions for target customers who
wish to bring differentiated, mobile products to market quickly and cost effectively. We partner with customers to
define solutions specific to their requirements, and combine all of the above technologies using one of our solution
platforms, PSBs, which are proven logic IP cores, custom logic, software drivers, firmware and application software.
We then work with these customers to integrate and test CSSPs in their systems. The benefit of providing complete
solutions is that we effectively become a virtual extension of our customers' engineering organization.

Marketing, Sales and Customers

We are a sub-system integrator that monetizes solutions through silicon sales. We specialize in enhancing the user
experience in leading edge mobile devices and products. For our customers, we enable hardware differentiation
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quickly and cost effectively. For our partners, we expand their reach into new segments and new use cases thereby
expanding the served available market for their existing devices.

Our objective is to enable mobile market leaders to achieve mass customization with innovative CSSPs. Market
leading companies need to deliver new products quickly and cost effectively. We believe our programmable
technology allows us to deliver customizable solutions with low power consumption and high IP security, while
meeting system performance and BOM cost requirements. We believe our CSSPs allow OEMs and ODMs to rapidly
bring new and differentiated products to market quickly and cost effectively. CSSPs enable energy and cost efficient
solutions on design platforms from which a range of products can be introduced.

We recognize that our markets require a range of solutions, and we intend to work with market leading companies to

7
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combine silicon solution platforms, PSBs, packaging technology, software drivers and firmware to meet the product
proliferation, high bandwidth, time-to-market, time-in-market and form factor requirements of mobile device
manufacturers. We expect CSSPs to range from devices with mixed signal and visual enhancement capability to
devices which provide off-load engines. We intend to continue to define and implement compelling CSSPs for our
target customers and partners.

As a part of our objective to empower mobile market leaders to achieve mass customization with innovative CSSPs,
our business model includes a focused customer strategy in which we target market leading customers, who primarily
serve the market for differentiated mobile products. Our belief is that a large majority of our revenue will ultimately
come from less than 100 customers as we transition to this business model. We have identified and plan to continue to
identify the customers we want to serve with CSSPs. We are currently in different stages of engagement with a
number of these customers. We believe CSSPs are resonating with our target customers who value the platform design
capability, rapid time-to-market, longer time-in-market and low total cost of ownership available through the use of
CSSPs. We expect to expand our partner activities with top tier customers to define new silicon solution platforms and
PSBs.

We sell our products through a network of sales managers in North America, Europe and Asia. In addition to our
corporate headquarters in Sunnyvale, California, we have international sales operations in China, Japan, Taiwan, and
the United Kingdom. Our sales personnel and independent sales representatives are responsible for sales and
application support for a given region, focusing on major strategic accounts.

Our customers typically order our products through our distributors. Currently, we have two distributors in North
America and a network of seventeen distributors throughout Europe and Asia to support our international business.

We have a military, industrial and mobile product customer base that purchases our mature silicon products. We
expect to continue to offer silicon devices to these customers.

Our largest customer represented 14% of revenue in 2012. In addition, a significant portion of our revenue comes
from sales to customers located outside of the United States. Please see Note 12 to our consolidated financial
statements for information on our revenue by geography, market segment and key customers.

In the past, there has not been a predictable seasonal pattern to our business. However, we may experience seasonal
patterns in the future due to global economic conditions, the overall volatility of the semiconductor industry and the
inherent seasonality of the mobile and consumer markets.

Backlog

We do not believe that backlog as of any particular date is indicative of future results. A majority of our quarterly
shipments are typically booked during the quarter. Our sales are made primarily pursuant to standard purchase orders
issued by OEM customers and distributors.

Competition

A number of companies offer products that compete with one or more of our products and solutions. Our existing
competitors for CSSPs include: (i) suppliers of ASSPs; (ii) suppliers of mobile and/or application processors; and (iii)
suppliers of ASICs. Our existing competitors for FPGAs include suppliers of low power CPLDs and FPGAs.

ASSPs offer proven functionality which reduces development time, risk and cost, but it is difficult to offer a
differentiated product using standard devices, and ASSPs that meet the system design objectives are not always
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available. Programmable logic may be used to create custom functions that provide product differentiation or make up
for deficiencies in available ASSPs. PLDs require more designer input since the designer has to develop and integrate
the IP and may have to develop the software to drive the IP. PLDs are more expensive and consume more power than
ASSPs or ASICs, but they offer fast time-to-market and are typically reprogrammable. ASICs have a large
development cost and risk and a long time to market. As a result ASICs are generally only used for single designs
with very high volumes. CSSPs enable custom functions and system designs with fast time-to-market and longer
time-in-market since they are customized by us using our solution platforms that contain programmable logic. In
addition, because they are complete solutions, they reduce the system development cost and risk. Finally, CSSPs are
very energy efficient as a result of our programmable logic and how we intelligently architect our PSBs. They are very
suitable for OEMs or ODMs offering mobile differentiated products.

Research and Development
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We are focused on developing CSSPs. CSSPs consist of a combination of our silicon platforms, PSBs, software
drivers and fabric. Our future success will depend to a large extent on our ability to rapidly develop, enhance and
introduce CSSPs that meet emerging industry standards and satisfy changing customer requirements. We have made
and expect to continue to make substantial investments in research and development. Our research and development
expenses in 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $8.7 million (59% of revenue), $9.8 million (47% of revenue), and $7.5
million (29% of revenue), respectively.

As of the end of 2012, our research and development staff consisted of 29 employees located in California, India, and
Canada.

•
Our System Solutions Group, or SSG, is our internal group that provides system architecture and design services to
create CSSPs for our customers. It develops PSBs, associated software drivers and firmware, and integrates them with
our solution platforms that form the basis of our CSSPs.

•
Our software group develops the design libraries, interface routines and place and route software that allow our
system solution group, or SSG, and our FPGA customers to use third party design environments to develop designs
that are incorporated into our programmable devices.

•
Our ASSP design engineering group architects and specifies the solution platforms with the mixture of hard-wired
logic and programmable logic. This group then works with third-party design service companies that QuickLogic
contracts for device development.

•
Our programmable logic design engineering group develops low power programmable devices and analog circuits
targeted for mobile or battery powered embedded systems that can be used in standalone solution platforms such as
PolarProII, or combined with standard functions in solution platforms such as ArcticLinkII.

•Our product engineering group oversees product manufacturing and process development with our third partyfoundries, and is involved in ongoing process improvements to increase yields and optimize device characteristics.

Manufacturing

We have close relationships with third party manufacturers for our wafer fabrication, package assembly, testing and
programming requirements to help ensure stability in the supply of our products and to allow us to focus our internal
efforts on product and solution design and sales.

We currently outsource our wafer manufacturing, primarily to eSilicon, TowerJazz, and TSMC. TSMC manufactures
our pASIC 3, QuickRAM and certain QuickPCI products using a four-layer metal, 0.35 micron complementary metal
oxide semiconductor, or CMOS, process. TSMC also manufactures our Eclipse and other mature products using a
five-layer metal, 0.25 micron CMOS process on eight-inch wafers. eSilicon manufacturers our ArcticLink III VX and
BX products using a 7-layer metal, 65nm CMOS process on twelve-inch wafers. TowerJazz manufactures our new
products, using a six-layer metal, 0.18 micron CMOS process. We purchase products from eSilicon, TowerJazz, and
TSMC, on a purchase order basis. We outsource our product packaging, testing and programming primarily to Amkor
Technology, Inc and Unisem (M) Berhard.

Outsourcing of wafer manufacturing enables us to take advantage of the high volume economies of scale offered by
these suppliers. We may establish additional foundry relationships as such arrangements become economically useful
or technically necessary.

Employees
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As of December 30, 2012, we had a total of 86 employees worldwide. We believe our future success depends in part
on our continued ability to attract, hire and retain qualified personnel. None of our employees are represented by a
labor union and we believe our employee relations are favorable.

Intellectual Property

We believe that it is important to maintain a large patent portfolio to protect our innovations. We currently hold 77
U.S. patents and have one pending application for an additional U.S. patent, Our patents contain claims covering
various aspects of programmable integrated circuits, programmable interconnect structures and programmable metal
devices. In Europe and Asia, we have been granted a total of 12 patents. Our issued patents expire between 2013 and
2028.

9
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In most cases, revenue will decline from a decrease in demand for our mature products long before the expiration of
pending or issued patents relating to the underlying technology in such products. The decision to cease maintaining a
patent is determined on the importance of the patent in our current or future product offerings.

We have six trademarks registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Executive Officers and Directors

Our executive officers are appointed by, and serve at the discretion of, our Board of Directors. There are no family
relationships among our directors and officers.

The following table sets forth certain information concerning our current executive officers and directors as of
February 25, 2013:

Name Age Position
Andrew J. Pease 62 President and Chief Executive Officer; Director
E. Thomas Hart 71 Executive Chairman of the Board
George Apostol Jr. 48 Vice President, Worldwide Engineering

Brian Faith

�     
Assessments
e q u a l  t o
200% of the
dollar value
of each such
s e r v i c e
p r o v i d e d ;
and

�     Exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Hospice care itself is not specifically listed as a designated health service; however, certain services that Vitas
provides, or in the future may provide, are among the services identified as designated health services for purposes of
the self-referral laws.  The Company cannot assure that future regulatory changes will not result in hospice services
becoming subject to the Stark Law’s ownership, investment or compensation prohibitions in the future.

Many states where Vitas operates have laws similar to the Stark Law, but with broader effect because they apply
regardless of the source of payment for care.  Penalties similar to those listed above as well as the loss of state
licensure may be imposed in the event of a violation of these state self-referral laws.  Little precedent exists regarding
the interpretation or enforcement of these statutes.

Civil Monetary Penalties.  The Civil Monetary Penalties Statute provides that civil penalties ranging between $10,000
and $50,000 per claim or act may be imposed on any person or entity that knowingly submits improperly filed claims
for federal health benefits or that offers or makes payment to induce a beneficiary or
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provider to reduce or limit the use of health care services or to use a particular provider or supplier.  Civil monetary
penalties may be imposed for violations of the anti-kickback statute and for the failure to return known overpayments,
among other things.

Prohibition on Employing or Contracting with Excluded Providers.  The Social Security Act and federal regulations
state that individuals or entities that have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the delivery of an item or
service under Medicare or Medicaid programs or that have been convicted, under state and federal law, of a criminal
offense relating to neglect or abuse of residents in connection with the delivery of a healthcare item or service cannot
participate in any federal health care programs, including Medicare and Medicaid.  Additionally, individuals and
entities convicted of fraud, that have had their licenses revoked or suspended, or that have failed to provide services of
adequate quality also may be excluded from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.  Federal regulations prohibit
Medicare providers, including hospice programs, from submitting claims for items or services or their related costs if
an excluded provider furnished those items or services.  The OIG maintains a list of excluded persons and
entities.   Nonetheless, it is possible that Vitas might unknowingly bill for services provided by an excluded person or
entity with whom it contracts.  The penalty for contracting with an excluded provider may range from civil monetary
penalties of $50,000 and damages of up to three times the amount of payment that was inappropriately received.

Corporate Practice of Medicine and Fee Splitting.  Most states have laws that restrict or prohibit anyone other than a
licensed physician, including business entities such as corporations, from employing physicians and/or prohibit
payments or fee-splitting arrangements between physicians and corporations or unlicensed individuals.  Penalties for
violations of corporate practice of medicine and fee-splitting laws vary from state to state, but may include civil or
criminal penalties, the restructuring or termination of the business arrangements between the physician and unlicensed
individual or business entity, or even the loss of the physician’s license to practice medicine.  These laws vary widely
from state to state both in scope and origin (e.g. statute, regulation, Attorney General opinion, court ruling, agency
policy) and in most instances have been subject to only limited interpretation by the courts or regulatory bodies.

Vitas employs or contracts with physicians to provide medical direction and patient care services to its patients.  Vitas
has made efforts in those states where certain contracting or fee arrangements are restricted or prohibited to structure
those arrangements, including its palliative care offerings, in compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations.  Despite these efforts, however, the Company cannot assure that agency officials charged with enforcing
these laws will not interpret Vitas’ contracts with employed or independent contractor physicians as violating the
relevant laws or regulations.  Future determinations or interpretations by individual states with corporate practice of
medicine or fee splitting restrictions may force Vitas to restructure its arrangements with physicians in those locations.

Health Information Practices.  There currently are numerous legislative and regulatory initiatives at both the state and
federal levels that address patient privacy concerns.  In particular, federal regulations issued under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) require Vitas to protect the privacy and security of
patients’ individual health information.  HIPAA does not automatically preempt applicable state laws and regulations
concerning Vitas’ use, disclosure and maintenance of patient health information, which means that Vitas is subject to a
complex regulatory scheme that, in many instances, requires Vitas to comply with both federal and state laws and
regulations.

Additional Federal and State Regulation. Federal and state governments also regulate various aspects of the hospice
industry.  In particular, Vitas’ operations are subject to federal and state health regulatory laws covering professional
services, the dispensing of drugs and certain types of hospice activities.  Some of Vitas’ employees are subject to state
laws and regulations governing the ethics and professional practice of medicine, respiratory therapy, pharmacy and
nursing.
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Compliance with Health Regulatory Laws.  Vitas maintains an internal regulatory compliance review program and
from time to time retains regulatory counsel for guidance on compliance matters.  The Company cannot assure,
however, that Vitas’ practices, if reviewed, would be found to be in compliance with applicable health regulatory laws,
as such laws ultimately may be interpreted, or that any non-compliance with such laws would not have a material
adverse effect, including an effect on its brand reputation, on Vitas.

Environmental Matters

Roto-Rooter’s operations are subject to various federal, state, and local laws and regulations regarding environmental
matters and other aspects of the operation of a sewer and drain cleaning, HVAC and plumbing services business.  For
certain other activities, such as septic tank and grease trap pumping, Roto-Rooter is subject to state and local
environmental health and sanitation regulations.

At December 31, 2011, the Company’s accrual for its estimated liability for potential environmental cleanup and
related costs arising from the sale of DuBois Chemicals Inc. (“DuBois”) amounted to $1.7 million.  Of this balance,
$901,000 is included in other liabilities and $826,000 is included in other current liabilities.  The Company is
contingently liable for additional DuBois-related environmental cleanup and related costs up to a maximum of $14.9
million.  On the basis of a continuing evaluation of the Company’s potential liability, and in consultation with the
Company’s environmental attorney, management believes that it is not probable this additional liability will be
paid.  Accordingly, no provision for this contingent liability has been recorded.  Although it is not presently possible
to reliably project the timing of payments related to the Company’s potential liability for environmental costs,
management believes that any adjustments to its recorded liability will not materially adversely affect its financial
position or results of operations.

The Company, to the best of its knowledge, is currently in compliance in all material respects with the environmental
laws and regulations affecting its operations.  Such environmental laws, regulations and enforcement proceedings
have not required the Company to make material increases in or modifications to its capital expenditures and they
have not had a material adverse effect on sales or net income.  Capital expenditures for the purpose of complying with
environmental laws and regulations during 2012 and 2013 with respect to continuing operations are not expected to be
material in amount; there can be no assurance, however, that presently unforeseen legislative enforcement actions will
not require additional expenditures.

Employees

On December 31, 2011, Chemed Corporation had a total of 13,733 employees.

Available Information

The Company’s Internet address is www.chemed.com .  The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant
to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are electronically available through the SEC (http://www.sec.gov) or
the Company’s website as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

Annual reports, press releases, Board Committee charters, Code of Ethics, Corporate governance guidelines and other
printed materials may be obtained from the website or from Chemed Investor Relations without charge by writing to
2600 Chemed Center, 255 East Fifth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 or by calling 800-2CHEMED or 513-762-6429.
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Item 1A.  Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below.  They are not the only ones facing the Company.  Other risks
and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we deem to be immaterial may also materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition, or results of operations.

GENERAL

We have incurred debt to finance the operations of the Company.

The Company has debt service obligations that may restrict our operating flexibility.  We cannot assure you that our
cash flow from operations will be sufficient to service our debt, which may require us to borrow additional funds, or
restructure or otherwise refinance our debt.  In addition, the Company has the ability to expand its debt and borrowing
capacity subject to various restrictions and covenants defined by its creditors.  The interest rate the Company pays will
fluctuate from time to time based upon a number of factors including current LIBOR rates and Company operating
performance.  Significant changes in these factors could result in a material change in the Company’s interest expense.

Our indebtedness could have important consequences for our business.  Among other things, our indebtedness may:

�      Limit our ability to obtain additional financing;

�      Limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in the markets in which we compete;

�      Place us at a competitive disadvantage relative to our competitors with less indebtedness;

�      Increase our exposure to interest rate increases due to variable interest rates on certain borrowings;

�      Limit our ability to complete future acquisitions;

�      Limit our ability to make capital expenditures;

�      Render us more vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions; and

�      Require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to service and repay our debt.

Servicing our indebtedness will require a significant amount of cash, and our ability to generate cash depends on many
factors beyond our control.

Our ability to repay or to refinance our indebtedness and to pay interest on our indebtedness will depend on our
operating performance, which may be affected by factors beyond our control.  These factors could include operating
difficulties, increased operating costs, our competitors’ actions and regulatory developments.  Our ability to meet our
debt service and other obligations may depend in significant part on the extent to which we successfully implement
our business strategy.  We cannot assure you that we will be able to implement our strategy fully or that the
anticipated results of our strategy will be realized.  Current credit market conditions may make it difficult for us to
obtain new financing or refinance our current debt on terms and conditions acceptable to us.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may be forced to
reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets, seek additional equity capital or restructure our debt.  We cannot
assure you that our cash flows and capital resources will be sufficient to make scheduled payments of

Edgar Filing: QUICKLOGIC CORPORATION - Form 10-K

23



14

Edgar Filing: QUICKLOGIC CORPORATION - Form 10-K

24



principal and interest on our indebtedness in the future or that alternative measures would successfully meet our debt
service obligations.

As certain of our obligations under our credit facilities and certain other borrowings could bear interest at floating
rates, an increase in interest rates could further increase our debt service costs and adversely affect our cash flows.

We have debt that is convertible into shares based on the Company’s stock price.  This could significantly dilute the
ownership percentage of current stockholders.

The agreements and instruments governing our outstanding debt contain restrictions and limitations that could
significantly impact our ability to operate our business and adversely affect the price of our Capital Stock.

The operating and financial restrictions and covenants in our instruments of indebtedness restrict our ability to:

�      Incur additional debt;

�      Issue and sell capital stock of subsidiaries;

�      Sell assets;

�      Engage in transactions with affiliates;

�      Restrict distributions from subsidiaries;

�      Incur liens;

�      Engage in business other than permitted businesses;

�      Engage in sale/leaseback transactions;

�      Engage in mergers or consolidations;

�      Make capital expenditures;

�      Make guarantees;

�      Make investments and acquisitions;

�      Enter into operating leases;

�      Hedge interest rates; and

�      Prepay other debt.

Moreover, if we are unable to meet the terms of the financial covenants or if we breach any of these covenants, a
default could result under one or more of these agreements.  A default, if not waived by our lenders, could accelerate
repayment of our outstanding indebtedness.  If acceleration occurs, we may not be able to repay our
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debt and it is unlikely that we would be able to borrow sufficient additional funds to refinance such debt on acceptable
terms.  In the event of any default under our credit facilities, the lenders thereunder could elect to declare all
outstanding borrowings, together with accrued and unpaid interest and other fees, to be due and payable, and to
require us to apply all of our available cash to repay these borrowings, any of which would be an event of default.

We depend on our management team and the loss of their service could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our success depends to a large extent upon the continued services of our executive management team.  The loss of
key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows. Additionally, we cannot assure you that we will be able to attract or retain other skilled personnel in the future.

Environmental compliance costs and liabilities could increase our expenses and adversely affect our financial
condition.

Our operations are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations that prohibit or restrict
the discharge of pollutants into the environment and regulate employee exposure to hazardous substance in the
workplace.  Failure to comply with these laws could subject us to material costs and liabilities, including civil and
criminal fines, costs to cleanup contamination we cause and, in some circumstances, costs to cleanup contamination
we discover on our own property but did not cause.

Because we use and generate hazardous materials in some of our operations, we are potentially subject to material
liabilities relating to the cleanup of contamination and personal injury claims.  In addition, we have retained certain
environmental liabilities in connection with the sale of former businesses.  We are currently funding the cleanup of
historical contamination at one of our former properties and contributing to the cleanup of third-party sites as a result
of our sale of our former subsidiary DuBois Chemicals Inc.  Although we have established a reserve for these
liabilities, actual cleanup costs may exceed our current estimates due to factors beyond our control, such as the
discovery of additional contamination or the enforcement of more stringent cleanup requirements.  New laws and
regulations or their stricter enforcement, the discovery of presently unknown conditions or the receipt of additional
claims for indemnification could require us to incur costs or become the basis for new or increased liabilities including
impairment of our brand that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are subject to certain anti-takeover statutes that might make it more difficult to effect a change in control of the
Company.

We are subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which
prohibits us from engaging in a “business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a period of three years after
the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless the business combination is
approved in a prescribed manner.  The application of Section 203 could have the effect of delaying or preventing a
change of control that could be advantageous to stockholders.

An adverse ruling against us in certain litigation could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

We are involved in litigation incidental to the conduct of our business currently and from time to time.  The damages
claimed against us in some of these cases are substantial.

See the “Legal Proceedings” sections of this 10-K for discussion of particular matters.
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We cannot assure you that we will prevail in pending cases.  Regardless of the outcome, such litigation is costly to
manage, investigate and defend, and the related defense costs, diversion of management’s time and related publicity
may adversely affect the conduct of our business and the results of our operations.

ROTO-ROOTER

We face intense competition from numerous, fragmented competitors.  If we do not compete effectively, our business
may suffer.

We face intense competition from numerous competitors, many of whom have less leverage than we do.  The sewer,
drain and pipe cleaning, and plumbing repair businesses are highly fragmented, with the bulk of the industries
consisting of local and regional competitors.  We compete primarily on the basis of advertising, range of services
provided, name recognition, availability of emergency service, speed and quality of customer service, service
guarantees and pricing.  Our competitors may succeed in developing new or enhanced products and services more
successful than ours and in marketing and selling existing and new products and services better than we do.  In
addition, new competitors may emerge.  We cannot make any assurances that we will continue to be able to compete
successfully with any of these companies.

Our operations are subject to numerous laws and regulations, exposing us to potential claims and compliance costs
that could adversely affect our business.

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to franchising, insurance and other aspects of
our business.  These are discussed in greater detail under “Government Regulations” in the Description of Business
section hereof.  If we fail to comply with existing or future laws and regulations, we may be subject to governmental
or judicial fines and sanctions.  Our franchising activities are subject to various federal and state franchising laws and
regulations, including the rules and regulations of the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”) regarding the offering or
sale of franchises.  The rules and regulations of the FTC require us to provide all of our prospective franchisees with
specific information regarding us and our franchise program in the form of a detailed franchise offering circular.  In
addition, a number of states require us to register our franchise offering prior to offering or selling franchises in such
states.  Various state laws also provide for certain rights in favor of franchisees, including (i) limitations on the
franchisor’s ability to terminate a franchise except for good cause, (ii) restrictions on the franchisor’s ability to deny
renewal of a franchise, (iii) circumstances under which the franchisor may be required to purchase certain inventory of
franchisees when a franchise is terminated or not renewed in violation of such laws and (iv) provisions relating to
arbitration.  The ability to engage in the plumbing repair business is also subject to certain limitations and restrictions
imposed by the state and local licensing laws and regulations.   We cannot predict what legislation or regulations
affecting our business will be enacted in the future, how existing or future laws or regulations will be enforced,
administered and interpreted, or the amount of future expenditures that may be required to comply with these laws or
regulations.  Compliance costs associated with governmental regulations could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Roto-Rooter’s loss of key management personnel or its inability to hire and retain skilled employees could adversely
affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Roto-Rooter’s future success significantly depends upon the continued service of its senior management
personnel.  The loss of one or more of Roto-Rooter’s key senior management personnel or its inability to hire and
retain new skilled employees could negatively impact its ability to maintain or increase customer calls and jobs, a key
aspect of its growth strategy, and could adversely affect its future operating results.
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Competition for skilled employees, particularly related to licensed plumbers, is intense, and the process of locating
and recruiting skilled employees with the combination of qualifications and attributes required to adequately perform
plumbing duties can be difficult and lengthy.  We cannot assure you that Roto-Rooter will be successful in attracting,
retaining or training highly skilled personnel.  Roto-Rooter’s business could be disrupted and its growth and
profitability negatively impacted if it is unable to attract and retain skilled employees.
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Cybersecurity

In the normal course of business, our information technology systems hold sensitive customer information including
names, addresses and partial credit card information.  Additionally, we utilize those same systems to perform our
day-to-day activities, such as receiving customer calls, dispatching technicians to jobs and maintaining an accurate
record of all transactions.  We have not experienced any attacks on our information technology systems that
compromised customer data or the Company’s proprietary data.  We maintain our information technology systems
with up to date safeguard protection against cyber-attacks including passive intrusion protection, firewalls and virus
detection software.  Additionally, on a quarterly basis, we test our information technology systems using the latest
cyber-attack software and methods to learn how a successful attack may be made.  We remedy any issues encountered
during these tests.  However, these safeguards do not ensure that a significant cyber-attack could not occur.  A
successful attack on our information technology systems could have significantly negative consequences to the
business including liability for compromised customer information and business interruption.

VITAS

Vitas is highly dependent on payments from Medicare and Medicaid.  If there are changes in the rate or methods
governing these payments, Vitas’ net patient service revenue and profits could materially decline.

In excess of 90% of Vitas’ net patient service revenue consists of payments from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs.  Such payments are made primarily on a “per diem” basis, subject to annual reimbursement caps.  Because
Vitas receives a per diem fee to provide eligible services to all patients, Vitas’ profitability is largely dependent upon
its ability to manage the costs of providing hospice services to patients.  Increases in operating costs, such as labor and
supply costs that are subject to inflation, without a compensating increase in Medicare and Medicaid rates, could have
a material adverse effect on Vitas’ business in the future.  Medicare and Medicaid currently adjust the various hospice
payment rates annually based primarily on the increase or decrease of the hospital wage index basket, regionally
adjusted.  However, the increases may be less than actual inflation.  Vitas’ profitability could be negatively impacted if
this adjustment were eliminated or reduced, or if Vitas’ costs of providing hospice services increased more than the
annual adjustment.  In addition, cost pressures resulting from shorter patient lengths of stay and the use of more
expensive forms of palliative care, including drugs and drug delivery systems, could negatively impact Vitas’
profitability.  Many payors are increasing pressure to control health care costs.  In addition, both public and private
payors are increasing pressure to decrease, or limit increases in, reimbursement rates for health care services.  Vitas’
levels of revenue and profitability will be subject to the effect of possible reductions in coverage or payment rates by
third-party payors, including payment rates from Medicare and Medicaid.

Each state that maintains a Medicaid program has the option to provide reimbursement for hospice services at
reimbursement rates generally required to be at least as much as Medicare rates.  All states in which Vitas operates
cover Medicaid hospice services; however, we cannot assure you that the states in which Vitas is presently operating
or states into which Vitas could expand operations will continue to cover Medicaid hospice services.  In addition, the
Medicare and Medicaid programs are subject to statutory and regulatory changes, retroactive and prospective rate and
payment adjustments, administrative rulings, freezes and funding reductions, all of which may adversely affect the
level of program payments and could have a material adverse effect on Vitas’ business.  We cannot assure that
Medicare and/or Medicaid payments to hospices will not decrease.  Reductions in amounts paid by government
programs for services or changes in methods or regulations governing payments could cause Vitas’ net patient service
revenue and profits to materially decline.

Approximately 23% of Vitas’ hospice patients reside in nursing homes. Changes in the laws and regulations regarding
payments for hospice services and “room and board” provided to Vitas’ hospice patients residing in nursing homes could
reduce its net patient service revenue and profitability.
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For Vitas’ hospice patients receiving nursing home care under certain state Medicaid programs who elect hospice care
under Medicare and Medicaid, the state generally must pay Vitas, in addition to the applicable Medicare or Medicaid
hospice per diem rate, an amount equal to at least 95% of the Medicaid per diem nursing home rate for “room and
board” furnished to the patient by the nursing home.  Vitas contracts with various nursing homes for the nursing homes’
provision of certain “room and board” services that the nursing homes would otherwise provide Medicaid nursing home
patients.  Vitas bills and collects from the applicable state Medicaid program an amount equal to approximately 95%
of the amount that would otherwise have been paid directly to the nursing home under the state’s Medicaid
plan.  Under Vitas’ standard nursing home contracts, it pays the nursing home for these “room and board” services at
approximately 100% of the Medicaid per diem nursing home rate.

The reduction or elimination of Medicare and Medicaid payments for hospice patients residing in nursing homes
would reduce Vitas’ net patient service revenue and profitability.  In addition, changes in the way nursing homes are
reimbursed for “room and board” services provided to hospice patients residing in nursing homes could affect Vitas’
ability to serve patients in nursing homes.

If Vitas is unable to maintain relationships with existing patient referral sources or to establish new referral sources,
Vitas’ growth and profitability could be adversely affected.

Vitas’ success is heavily dependent on referrals from physicians, long-term care facilities, hospitals and other
institutional health care providers, managed care companies, insurance companies and other patient referral sources in
the communities that its hospice locations serve, as well as on its ability to maintain good relations with these referral
sources.  Vitas’ referral sources may refer their patients to other hospice care providers or not to a hospice provider at
all.  Vitas’ growth and profitability depend significantly on its ability to establish and maintain close working
relationships with these patient referral sources and to increase awareness and acceptance of hospice care by its
referral sources and their patients.  We cannot assure you that Vitas will be able to maintain its existing relationships
or that it will be able to develop and maintain new relationships in existing or new markets.  Vitas’ loss of existing
relationships or its failure to develop new relationships could adversely affect its ability to expand or maintain its
operations and operate profitably.  Moreover, we cannot assure you that awareness or acceptance of hospice care will
increase or remain at current levels.

Vitas operates in an industry that is subject to extensive government regulation and claims reviews, and changes in
law and regulatory interpretations could reduce its net patient service revenue and profitability and adversely affect its
financial condition and results of operations.

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations relating to, among
others:

�      Payment for services;

�      Conduct of operations, including fraud and abuse, anti-kickback prohibitions, self-referral prohibitions and false
claims;

�      Privacy and security of medical records;

�      Employment practices; and

�      Various state approval requirements, such as facility and professional licensure, certificate of need, compliance
surveys and other certification or recertification requirements.
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Changes in these laws, rules and regulations or in interpretations thereof could reduce Vitas’ net patient service
revenue and profitability.  Vitas’ ability to comply with such regulations is a key factor in determining the
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success of its business.  See the “Government Regulations” section of this 10-K for a greater description of these
matters.

Fraud and Abuse Laws.  Vitas contracts with a significant number of health care providers and practitioners, including
physicians, hospitals and nursing homes and arranges for these entities to provide services to Vitas’ patients.  Some of
these health care providers and practitioners may refer, or be in a position to refer, patients to Vitas (or Vitas may refer
patients to them).  These arrangements may not qualify for a safe harbor.  Vitas from time to time seeks guidance from
regulatory counsel as to the changing and evolving interpretations and the potential applicability of the Anti-Kickback
Law to its programs, and in response thereto, takes such actions as it deems appropriate.  Vitas generally believes that
its contracts and arrangements with providers, practitioners and suppliers should not be found to violate the
Anti-Kickback Law.  However, we cannot assure you that such laws will ultimately be interpreted in a manner
consistent with Vitas’ practices.

Several health care reform proposals have included an expansion of the Anti-Kickback Law to include referrals of any
patients regardless of payor source, which is similar to the scope of certain laws that have been enacted at the state
level.  In addition, a number of states in which Vitas operates have laws, which vary from state to state, prohibiting
certain direct or indirect remuneration or fee-splitting arrangements between health care providers, regardless of payor
source, for the referral of patients to a particular provider.

The federal Ethics in Patient Referral Act, Section 1877 of the Social Security Act (commonly known as the “Stark
Law”) prohibits physicians from referring Medicare or Medicaid patients for “designated health services” to entities in
which they hold an ownership or investment interest or with whom they have a compensation arrangement, subject to
certain statutory or regulatory exceptions.  We cannot assure you that future statutory or regulatory changes will not
result in hospice services being subject to the Stark Law’s ownership, investment, compensation or referral
prohibitions.  Several states in which Vitas operates have similar laws which likewise are subject to change.  Any such
changes could adversely affect the business, financial condition and operating results of Vitas.

Further, under separate statutes, submission of claims for items or services that are “not provided as claimed” may lead
to civil money penalties, criminal fines and imprisonment and/or exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicaid
and other federally funded state health care programs.  These false claims statutes include the federal False Claims
Act, which allows any person to bring suit on behalf of the federal government, known as a qui tam action, alleging
false or fraudulent Medicare or Medicaid claims or other violations of the statute and to share in any amounts paid by
the entity to the government in fines or settlement.  See the discussion of the governmental investigations pending
against Vitas under Other Healthcare Regulations, above.

Certificate of Need Laws.  Many states, including Florida, have certificate of need laws or other similar health
planning laws that apply to hospice care providers.  These states may require some form of state agency review or
approval prior to opening a new hospice program, to adding or expanding hospice services, to undertaking significant
capital expenditures or under other specified circumstances.  Approval under these certificate of need laws is generally
conditioned on the showing of a demonstrable need for services in the community.  Vitas may seek to develop,
acquire or expand hospice programs in states having certificate of need laws.  To the extent that state agencies require
Vitas to obtain a certificate of need or other similar approvals to expand services at existing hospice programs or to
make acquisitions or develop hospice programs in new or existing geographical markets, Vitas’ plans could be
adversely affected by a failure to obtain a certificate or approval.  In addition, competitors may seek administratively
or judicially to challenge such an approval or proposed approval by the state agency.  Such a challenge, whether or not
ultimately successful, could adversely affect Vitas.

Other Federal and State Regulations. The federal government and all states regulate various aspects of the hospice
industry and Vitas’ business.  In particular, Vitas’ operations are subject to federal and state health regulatory laws,
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Vitas’ operations are subject to periodic survey by governmental authorities and private accrediting entities to assure
compliance with applicable state licensing, and Medicare and Medicaid certification and accreditation standards, as
the case may be.  From time to time in the ordinary course of business, Vitas receives survey reports noting
deficiencies for alleged failure to comply with applicable requirements.  Vitas reviews such reports and takes
appropriate corrective action.  The failure to effect such action could result in one of Vitas’ hospice programs being
terminated from the Medicare hospice program.  Any termination of one or more of Vitas’ hospice locations from the
Medicare hospice program could adversely affect Vitas’ net patient service revenue and profitability and adversely
affect its financial condition and results of operations.   The failure to obtain, renew or maintain any of the required
regulatory approvals, certifications or licenses could materially adversely affect Vitas’ business and could prevent the
programs involved from offering products and services to patients.  In addition, laws and regulations often are adopted
to regulate new products, services and industries.  We cannot assure you that either the states or the federal
government will not impose additional regulations on Vitas’ activities, which might materially adversely affect Vitas,
including impairing the value of its brand.

Claims Review.  The Medicare and Medicaid programs and their fiscal intermediaries and other payors periodically
conduct pre-payment or post-payment reviews and other reviews and audits of health care claims, including hospice
claims.  As a result of such reviews or audits, Vitas could be required to return any amounts found to be overpaid, or
amounts found to be overpaid could be recouped through reductions in future payments.  There is pressure from state
and federal governments and other payors to scrutinize health care claims to determine their validity and
appropriateness.  Vitas’ claims have been subject to review and audit.  We cannot assure you that reviews and/or
similar audits of Vitas’ claims will not result in material recoupments, denials or other actions that could have a
material adverse effect on Vitas’ business, financial condition and results of operations.  See the discussion of OIG
investigations pending against Vitas under Other Health Care Regulations, above.

Regulation and Provision of Continuous Home Care.  Vitas provides continuous home care to patients requiring such
care.  Continuous home care is provided to patients while at home, during periods of crisis when intensive monitoring
and care, primarily nursing care, is required in order to achieve palliation or management of acute medical
symptoms.  Continuous home care requires a minimum of 8 hours of care within a 24-hour day, which begins and
ends at midnight.  The care must be predominantly nursing care provided by either a registered nurse or licensed
practical nurse.

Continuous home care can be challenging for a hospice to provide for a number of reasons, including the need to have
available sufficient skilled and trained staff to furnish such care, the need to manage the staffing and provision of such
care, and a shortage of nurses that can make it particularly difficult to attract and retain nurses that are required to
furnish a majority of such care.  Medicare reimbursement for continuous home care has been calculated by
multiplying the applicable continuous home care hourly rate by the number of hours of care provided.  If the care was
provided for less than one hour, Medicare requires reporting in 15-minute increments of care provided, with no
rounding.

Medicare reimbursement for continuous home care is subject to a number of requirements posing further challenges
for a hospice providing such care.  For example, if a patient requires skilled interventions for palliation or symptom
management that can be accomplished in less than 8 aggregate hours within the 24-hour period, if the majority of care
can be accomplished by someone other than a registered nurse or a licensed practical nurse (e.g., if a majority of care
is furnished by a home health aide or homemaker), or if for any reason less than 8 hours of direct care are provided
(such as when a patient dies before 8 AM even if 7 or more hours of care has been provided), the care rendered cannot
be reimbursed by Medicare at the continuous home care rate (although the care instead may be eligible for Medicare
reimbursement at the reduced routine home care day rate).  As a result of such requirements, Vitas may incur the costs
of providing services intended to be continuous home care services yet be unable to bill or be reimbursed for such
services at the continuous home care rate.  We cannot assure you that challenges in providing continuous home care
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of Vitas’ claims will not result in material recoupments, denials or other actions that could have a material adverse
effect on Vitas’ business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Compliance.  Vitas maintains an internal regulatory compliance review program and from time to time retains
regulatory counsel for guidance on compliance matters.  We cannot assure you, however, that Vitas’ practices, if
reviewed, would be found to be in compliance with applicable health regulatory laws, as such laws ultimately may be
interpreted, or that any non-compliance with such laws would not have a material adverse effect on Vitas.

Federal and state legislative and regulatory initiatives could require Vitas to expend substantial sums on acquiring,
implementing and supporting new information systems, which could negatively impact its profitability.

There are currently numerous legislative and regulatory initiatives at both the state and federal levels that address
patient privacy concerns.  We cannot predict the total financial or other impact of the regulations on Vitas’
operations.  In addition, although Vitas’ management believes it is in compliance with the requirement of patient
privacy regulations, we cannot assure you that Vitas will not be found to have violated state and federal laws, rules or
guidelines surrounding patient privacy.  Compliance with current and future HIPAA requirements or any other federal
or state privacy initiatives could require Vitas to make substantial investments, which could negatively impact its
profitability and cash flows.

Vitas’ growth strategies may not be successful, which could adversely affect its business.

A significant element of Vitas’ growth strategy is expected to include expansion of its business in new and existing
markets.  This aspect of Vitas’ growth strategy may not be successful, which could adversely impact its growth and
profitability.  We cannot assure you that Vitas will be able to:

�   Identify markets that meet its selection criteria for new hospice locations;

�   Hire and retain qualified management teams to operate each of its new hospice locations;

�   Manage a large and geographically diverse group of hospice locations;

�   Become Medicare and Medicaid certified in new markets;

�   Generate sufficient hospice admissions in new markets to operate profitably in these new markets;

�   Compete effectively with existing hospices in new markets; or

�   Obtain state licensure and/or a certificate of need from appropriate state agencies in new markets.

In addition to growing existing locations and developing new hospice locations, Vitas’ growth is expected to include
expansion through acquisition of other hospices.  We cannot assure you that Vitas’ acquisition strategy will be
successful.  The success of Vitas’ acquisition strategy depends upon a number of factors, including:

�   Its ability to identify suitable acquisition candidates;

�   Its ability to negotiate favorable acquisition terms, including purchase price, which may be adversely affected due
to increased competition with other buyers;

�   The availability of financing on favorable terms, or at all;

�   Its ability to integrate effectively the systems and operations of acquired hospices;
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�   Its ability to retain key personnel of acquired hospices; and

�   Its ability to obtain required regulatory approvals.

Acquisitions involve a number of other risks, including diversion of management’s attention from other business
concerns and assuming known or unknown liabilities of acquired hospices, including liabilities for failure to comply
with health care laws and regulations.  Integrating acquired hospices may place significant strains on Vitas’ current
operating and financial systems and controls.  Vitas may not successfully overcome these risks or any other problems
encountered in connection with its acquisition strategy.

In addition, since 1990, Vitas has acquired hospice programs, some of which involved acquisitions of hospice
programs from not-for-profit entities.  Vitas believes that acquisitions of not-for-profit programs are generally more
complex than acquisitions from for-profit entities and that a substantial number of acquisition opportunities are likely
to involve acquisitions from not-for-profit entities.  Such acquisitions are subject to provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code and, in certain states, state attorney general powers, which have been interpreted to require that the consideration
paid for the assets purchased be at fair market value and, where applicable, that any fees paid for services be
reasonable.  In many states there is no mechanism for state attorney general pre-clearance of transactions to assure that
applicable standards have been met.  Entities that acquired not-for-profit hospices could face potential liability if the
acquisition transaction is not structured to comply with Internal Revenue Code and state law requirements, and in
some cases the transaction could be enjoined or subject to rescission.  The acquisition of not-for-profit businesses,
including the fairness of the purchase price paid, has received increasing regulatory scrutiny by state attorneys general
and other regulatory authorities.  Although Vitas believes that reasonable actions have been taken to date to establish
the fair market value of assets purchased in prior acquisitions of hospice operations from not-for-profit entities and the
reasonableness of fees paid for services, we cannot assure you that such transactions or any future similar transactions
will not be challenged or that, if challenged, the results of such challenge would not have a material adverse effect on
Vitas’ business.

Vitas’ loss of key management personnel or its inability to hire and retain skilled employees could adversely affect its
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Vitas’ future success significantly depends upon the continued service of its senior management personnel.  The loss of
one or more of Vitas’ key senior management personnel or its inability to hire and retain new skilled employees could
negatively impact Vitas’ ability to maintain or increase patient referrals, a key aspect of its growth strategy, and could
adversely affect its future operating results.

Competition for skilled employees is intense, and the process of locating and recruiting skilled employees with the
combination of qualifications and attributes required to care effectively for terminally ill patients and their families
can be difficult and lengthy.  We cannot assure you that Vitas will be successful in attracting, retaining or training
highly skilled nursing, management, community education, operations, admissions and other personnel.  Vitas’
business could be disrupted and its growth and profitability negatively impacted if it is unable to attract and retain
skilled employees.

A nationwide shortage of qualified nurses could adversely affect Vitas’ profitability, growth and ability to continue to
provide quality, responsive hospice services to its patients as nursing wages and benefits increase.

The substantial majority of Vitas’ workforce is nurses.  Vitas depends on qualified nurses to provide quality,
responsive hospice services to its patients.  The current nationwide shortage of qualified nurses impacts some of the
markets in which Vitas provides hospice services.  In response to this shortage, Vitas has adjusted its wages and
benefits to recruit and retain nurses and to engage contract nurses.  Vitas’ inability to attract and retain qualified nurses
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qualified nurses or an increase in reliance on contract nurses could negatively impact profitability.
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Vitas may not be able to compete successfully against other hospice providers, and competitive pressures may limit its
ability to maintain or increase its market position and adversely affect its profitability, financial condition and results
of operations.

Hospice care in the United States is highly competitive.  In many areas in which Vitas’ hospices are located, they
compete with a large number of organizations, including:

�      Community-based hospice providers;

�      National and regional companies;

�      Hospital-based hospice and palliative care programs;

�      Physician groups;

�      Nursing homes;

�      Home health agencies;

�      Infusion therapy companies; and

�      Nursing agencies.

Various health care companies have diversified into the hospice market.  Other companies, including hospitals and
health care organizations that are not currently providing hospice care, may enter the markets Vitas serves and expand
the variety of services offered to include hospice care.  We cannot assure you that Vitas will not encounter increased
competition in the future that could limit its ability to maintain or increase its market position, including competition
from parties in a position to impact referrals to Vitas.  Such increased competition could have a material adverse effect
on Vitas’ business, financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in rates or methods of payment for Vitas’ services could adversely affect its revenues and profits.

Managed care organizations have grown substantially in terms of the percentage of the population they cover and their
control over an increasing portion of the health care economy.  Managed care organizations have continued to
consolidate to enhance their ability to influence the delivery of health care services and to exert pressure to control
health care costs.  Vitas has a number of contractual arrangements with managed care organizations and other similar
parties.

Vitas provides hospice care to many Medicare beneficiaries who receive their non-hospice health care services from
health maintenance organizations (“HMOs”) under Medicare risk contracts.  Under such contracts between HMOs and
the federal Department of Health and Human Services, the Medicare payments for hospice services are excluded from
the per-member, per-month payment from Medicare to HMOs and instead are paid directly by Medicare to the
hospices.  As a result, Vitas’ payments for Medicare beneficiaries enrolled in Medicare risk HMOs are processed in the
same way with the same rates as other Medicare beneficiaries.  We cannot assure, however, that payment for hospice
services will continue to be excluded from HMO payment under Medicare risk contracts and similar Medicare
managed care plans or that if not excluded, managed care organization or other large third-party payors would not use
their power to influence and exert pressure on health care providers to reduce costs in a manner that could have a
material adverse effect on Vitas’ business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Liability claims may have an adverse effect on Vitas, and its insurance coverage may be inadequate.

Participants in the hospice industry are subject to lawsuits alleging negligence, product liability or other similar legal
theories, many of which involve large claims and significant defense costs.  From time to time, Vitas is subject to such
and other types of lawsuits.  See the description below under Legal Proceedings.  The ultimate liability for claims, if
any, could have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or operating results.  Although Vitas currently
maintains liability insurance intended to cover the claims, we cannot assure you that the coverage limits of such
insurance policies will be adequate or that all such claims will be covered by the insurance.  In addition, Vitas’
insurance policies must be renewed annually and may be subject to cancellation during the policy period.  While Vitas
has been able to obtain liability insurance in the past, such insurance varies in cost, is difficult to obtain and may not
be available in the future on terms acceptable to Vitas, if at all.

A successful claim in excess of the insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on Vitas.  Claims,
regardless of their merit or eventual outcome, also may have a material adverse effect on Vitas’ business and reputation
due to the costs of litigation, diversion of management’s time and related publicity.

Vitas procures professional liability coverage on a claims-made basis.  The insurance contracts specify that coverage
is available only during the term of each insurance contract.  Vitas’ management intends to renew or replace the
existing claims-made policy annually but such coverage is difficult to obtain, may be subject to cancellation and may
be written by carriers that are unable, or unwilling to pay claims.  During fiscal 2001, Vitas was notified that one of its
prior carriers was ordered into rehabilitation, and in early fiscal 2002, into liquidation, creating the possibility that
certain prior year claims could be underinsured or uninsured.  Certain claims have been asserted where the coverage
would be the responsibility of this prior carrier and/or other carriers that may not have the financial wherewithal to
satisfy the claims.  Additionally, some risks and liabilities, including claims for punitive damages, are not covered by
insurance.

Cybersecurity

In the normal course of business, our information technology systems hold sensitive patient information including
patient demographic data, eligibility for various medical plans including Medicare and Medicaid and protected health
information.  Additionally, we utilize those same systems to perform our day-to-day activities, such as receiving
referrals, assigning medical teams to patients, documenting medical information and maintaining an accurate record of
all transactions.  We have not experienced any attacks on our information technology systems that have compromised
patient data or the Company’s proprietary data.  We maintain our information technology systems with up to date
safeguard protection against cyber-attacks including passive intrusion protection, firewalls and virus detection
software.  Additionally, on a quarterly basis, we test our information technology systems using the latest cyber-attack
software and methods to learn how a successful attack may be made.  We remedy any issues encountered during these
tests.  As discussed previously, we are subject to and comply with HIPPA regulations.  However, these safeguards do
not ensure that a significant cyber-attack could not occur.  A successful attack on our information technology systems
could have significantly negative consequences to the business including liability for compromised patient
information and business interruption.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2.  Properties
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The Company’s corporate offices and the headquarters for the Roto-Rooter Group are located in Cincinnati,
Ohio.  Roto-Rooter has manufacturing and distribution center facilities in West Des Moines, Iowa and has 105 leased
and owned office and service facilities in 29 states.  Vitas headquartered in Miami, operates 52 programs from 158
leased facilities and 34 inpatient units in 18 states and the District of Columbia.
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All “owned” property is held in fee and is subject to the security interests of the holders of our debt instruments.  The
leased properties have lease terms ranging from one year to seven years.  Management does not foresee any difficulty
in renewing or replacing the remainder of its current leases.  The Company considers all of its major operating
properties to be maintained in good operating condition and to be generally adequate for present and anticipated
needs.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings

Vitas is party to a class action lawsuit filed in the Superior Court of California, Los Angeles County, in September
2006 by Bernadette Santos, Keith Knoche and Joyce White.  This case alleges failure to pay overtime and failure to
provide meal and rest periods to a purported class of California admissions nurses, chaplains and sales
representatives.  The case seeks payment of penalties, interest and Plaintiffs’ attorney fees.  Vitas contests these
allegations.  In December 2009, the trial court denied plaintiff’s motion for class certification.  In July 2011, the Court
of Appeals affirmed denial of class certification on the travel time, meal and rest period claims, and reversed the trial
court’s denial on the off-the-clock and sales representation exemption claims.  Plaintiffs have filed an appeal of this
decision.  We are unable to estimate our potential liability or potential range of loss, if any, with respect to this case.

On March 1, 2010 Anthony Morangelli and Frank Ercole filed a class action lawsuit in federal district court for the
Eastern District of New York seeking unpaid minimum wages and overtime service technician compensation from
Roto-Rooter Services Company and Chemed.  They also seek payment of penalties, interest and Plaintiffs’ attorney
fees.  The Company contests these allegations.  In September 2010, the Court conditionally certified a nationwide
class of service technicians, excluding those who signed dispute resolution agreements agreeing to arbitrate claims
arising out of their employment.  We are unable to estimate our potential liability, if any, related to this case.

On November 14, 2011 Luann and Michael Cosgrove and Dawn Mills filed a class action lawsuit against Roto-Rooter
in Minnesota State District Court for the 4th Judicial District alleging unnecessary excavation work in Minnesota.  We
removed the case to federal court.  Plaintiffs seek damages, injunctive relief, attorney fees and interest.  Roto-Rooter
contests these allegations.  This lawsuit is in its early stage and we are unable to estimate our potential liability, if any,
with respect to these allegations.

On January 12, 2012, the Greater Pennsylvania Carpenters Pension Fund filed a putative class action lawsuit in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against the Company, Kevin McNamara, David
Williams, and Tim O’Toole.  It alleges violation of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule
10b-5 against all defendants, and violation of Section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 against the
individual defendants.  The suit, Greater Pennsylvania Carpenters Pension Fund v. Chemed Corp., et al., Civil Action
No. 1:12-cv-28 (S.D. Ohio), concerns the VITAS hospice segment of the Company's business.   Plaintiff seeks, on
behalf of a putative class of purchasers of Chemed Capital Stock between February 15, 2010 and November 16, 2011,
compensatory damages in an unspecified amount and attorneys' fees and expenses, arising from defendants' failure to
disclose an alleged fraudulent scheme to enroll ineligible hospice patients and to fraudulently obtain payments from
the federal government.   Defendants believe the allegations are without merit, and intend to defend vigorously against
them.

Regardless of outcome, such litigation can adversely affect the Company through defense costs, diversion of
management’s time, and related publicity.  In the normal course of business, we are a party to various claims and legal
proceedings.  We record a reserve for these matters when an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the
potential liability is reasonably estimable.

See also the OIG matters pending against Vitas under Other Health Care Regulations, above.
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Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures
               None

Executive Officers of the Company

Name Age Office First Elected

Kevin J. McNamara 58 President and Chief Executive Officer August 2, 1994 (1)
Timothy S. O’Toole 56 Executive Vice President May 18, 1992 (2)
Spencer S. Lee 56 Executive Vice President May 15, 2000 (3)
David P. Williams 51 Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer
March 5, 2004 (4)

Arthur V. Tucker, Jr. 62 Vice President and Controller February 1, 1989 (5)

(1)  Mr. K. J. McNamara is President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and has held these positions since
August 1994 and May 2001, respectively.  Previously, he served as an Executive Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel of the Company, since November 1993, August 1986 and August 1986, respectively.  He
previously held the position of Vice President of the Company, from August 1986 to May 1992.

(2)  Mr. T.S. O’Toole is an Executive Vice President of the Company and has held this position since May
1992.  He is also Chief Executive Officer of Vitas, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and has
held this position since February 24, 2004.  Previously, from May 1992 to February 24, 2004, he also
served the Company as Treasurer.

(3)  Mr. S. S. Lee is an Executive Vice President of the Company and has held this position since May 15, 2000.  Mr.
Lee is also Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Roto-Rooter Services Company, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and has held this position since January 1999.  Previously, he served as a Senior Vice President
of Roto-Rooter Services Company from May 1997 to January 1999.

(4)  Mr. D. P. Williams is an Executive Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer of the company and has held
these positions since August 10, 2007 and March 5, 2004, respectively.  Mr. Williams is also Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Roto-Rooter Group, Inc., and has held these positions since January
1999.

(5)  Mr. A. V. Tucker, Jr. is a Vice President and Controller of the Company and has held these positions since
February 1989.  From May 1983 to February 1989, he held the position of Assistant Controller of the Company.

Each executive officer holds office until the annual election at the next annual organizational meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Company which is scheduled to be held on May 21, 2012.
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PART II

Item 5.  Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

The Company’s Capital Stock (par value $1 per share) is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
CHE.  The range of the high and low sale prices on the New York Stock Exchange and dividends paid per share for
each quarter of 2010 and 2011 are set forth below.

Closing
Dividends
Paid

High Low Per Share
2010

First Quarter $ 57.18 $ 46.41 $ .12
Second Quarter 58.34 51.31 .12
Third Quarter 57.30 49.52 .14
Fourth Quarter 64.66 55.41 .14

2011

First Quarter $ 66.71 $ 61.96 $ .14
Second Quarter 72.02 63.94 .14
Third Quarter 67.08 50.64 .16
Fourth Quarter 60.68 48.24 .16

Future dividends are necessarily dependent upon the Company’s earnings and financial condition, compliance with
certain debt covenants and other factors not presently determinable.

As of February 15, 2012, there were approximately 2,274 stockholders of record of the Company’s Capital Stock.  This
number only includes stockholders of record and does not include stockholders with shares beneficially held in
nominee name or within clearinghouse positions of brokers, banks or other institutions.

During 2011, the number of shares of Capital Stock repurchased by the Company, the weighted average price paid for
each share, the cumulative shares repurchased under each program and the dollar amounts remaining under each
program were as follows:
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Company Purchase of Shares of Capital Stock

Total
Number
Of Shares
Repurchased

Weighted
Average
Price Paid

Per
Share

Cumulative
Shares

Repurchased
Under
The

Program

Dollar
Amount
Remaining
Under

The Program
April 2007 Program
  January 1 through January 31, 2011 300,513 $63.62 3,654,157 $24,543
  February 1 through February 28, 2011 377 65.03 3,654,534 -
  March 1 through March 31, 2011 - - 3,654,534 $ -
  First Quarter Total -- April 2007 Program 300,890 $ 63.62

February 2011 Program
  January 1 through January 31, 2011 - $- - $-
  February 22, 2011 Authorization - $- - 100,000,000
  February 1 through February 28, 2011 40,623 $65.03 40,623 97,358,313
  March 1 through March 31, 2011 - $- 40,623 $97,358,313
  First Quarter Total – February 2011 Program 40,623 $65.03

April 1 through April 30, 2011  - $-  40,623 $97,358,313
  May 1 through May 31, 2011 - $- 40,623 97,358,313
  June 1 through June 30, 2011 - $- 40,623 $97,358,313
  Second Quarter Total – February 2011 Program  - $ -

July 1 through July 31, 2011 41,112 $60.15  81,735 $94,885,576
  August 1 through August 31, 2011 710,172 $55.51 791,907 55,460,568
  September 1 through September 30, 2011 778,746 $55.02 1,570,653 $12,615,182
  Third Quarter Total – February 2011 Program 1,530,030 $55.39

October 1 through October 31, 2011 230,970 $53.94  1,801,623 $155,820
  November 7, 2011 Authorization - - - 100,000,000
  November 1 through November 30, 2011 247,712 49.88 2,049,335 87,800,735
  December 1 through December 31, 2011 252,288 49.68 2,301,623 $75,268,254
  Fourth Quarter Total – February 2011 Program 730,970 $51.09

On February 22, 2011, our Board of Directors authorized $100 million under the newly established February 2011
Repurchase Program.

On November 7, 2011, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $100 million under the February 2011
Repurchase Program.

As of December 31, 2011, the number of stock options outstanding under the Company’s equity compensation plans,
the weighted average exercise price of outstanding options, and the number of securities remaining available for
issuance were as follows:
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Plan Category

Number of
securities

to be issued upon
exercise of

outstanding warrants
and rights

(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding
options,

warrants and
rights
(b)

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

under equity
compensation plans

[excluding
securities reflected
in column (a)]

(c)
Equity Compensation plans approved by
stockholders 2,624,523 $ 52.56 1,420,134
Equity Compensation plans not approved
by stockholders (1) 14,000 29.20 -
TOTAL 2,638,523 $ 52.44 1,420,134

(1)  In May 1999 the Board of Directors adopted the 1999 Long-Term Employee Incentive Plan without stockholder
approval.  This plan permits the Company to grant up to 500,000 shares of non-qualified options and stock awards
to a broad base of salaried and hourly employees (excluding officers and directors) of the Company.  Except for
the exclusion of officers and directors, this plan has the same general terms and provisions as the 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan.  In addition, pursuant to this plan no individual may be granted more than 50,000 stock options in
a calendar year, the aggregate number of the shares of Capital Stock which may be issued pursuant to stock
incentives in the form of Stock Awards shall not be more than 270,000, and no stock incentives shall be granted
under the plan after May 17, 2009.

Comparative Stock Performance

The graph below compares the yearly percentage change in the Company’s cumulative total stockholder return on
Capital Stock (as measured by dividing (i) the sum of (A) the cumulative amount of dividends for the period
December 31, 2006, to December 31, 2011, assuming dividend reinvestment, and (B) the difference between the
Company’s share price at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2011; by (ii) the share price at December 31, 2006)
with the cumulative total return, assuming reinvestment of dividends, of the (1) S&P 500 Stock Index and (2) Dow
Jones Industrial Diversified Index.
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data

The information called for by this Item for the five years ended December 31, 2011 is set forth on page 34 of the 2011
Annual Report to Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information called for by this Item is set forth on pages 38 through 52 of the 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company’s primary market risk exposure relates to interest rate risk exposure through its variable interest line of
credit.  At December 31, 2011 the Company had no variable rate debt outstanding.  For each $10 million dollars
borrowed under the credit facility, an increase or decrease of 100 basis points (1% point), increases or decreases the
Company’s annual interest expense by $100,000.

The Company continually evaluates this interest rate exposure and periodically weighs the cost versus the benefit of
fixing the variable interest rates through a variety of hedging techniques.

The market value of the Company’s long-term debt at December 31, 2011 is approximately $175.8 million versus a
carrying value of $166.8 million.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements, together with the report thereon of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP dated
February 27, 2012, appearing on pages 1 through 31 of the 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders, along with the
Supplementary Data (Unaudited Summary of Quarterly Results) appearing on pages 32-33, are incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, under the supervision of and with the participation of the Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Vice President and Controller, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as of the end of
the period covered by this report.  Based on such evaluation, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Vice President and Controller have concluded that, as of the
end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective and are reasonably designed to
ensure that all material information relating to the Company required to be included in the Company’s reports filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the President and Chief Executive Officer, Executive Vice President and
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Chief Financial Officer and Vice President and Controller, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Refer to Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm on pages 1 and 2 of the Company’s 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders, which are
incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act during the Company’s fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2011
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information

Not applicable.

PART III

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The directors of the Company are:

Kevin J. McNamara
Joel F. Gemunder
Patrick P. Grace
Thomas C. Hutton
Walter L. Krebs
Andrea R. Lindell
Thomas P. Rice
Donald E. Saunders
George J. Walsh III
Frank E. Wood

The additional information required under this Item is set forth in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement and in Part I
hereof under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” and is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to the Company’s principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer, directors and employees.  A copy of this Code of Ethics is incorporated
with this report as Exhibit 14 and it is also posted on the Company’s Web site, www.chemed.com.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation

Information required under this Item is set forth in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
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Information required under this Item is set forth in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein
by reference.
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Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information required under this Item is set forth in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

A description of related party transactions is shown in Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on
page 27 of the 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Audit Fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP billed the Company $1,570,000 for 2010 and $1,616,000 for 2011.  These fees were for
professional services rendered for the integrated audit of the Company’s annual financial statements and of its internal
control over financial reporting, review of the financial statements included in the Company’s Forms 10-Q and review
of documents filed with the SEC.

Audit-Related Fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP billed the Company $133,000 and $127,000 for 2010 and 2011, respectively, for
audit-related services.  These services were related to the audit of one of Vitas’ Florida subsidiaries.

Tax Fees

No such services were rendered in 2010 or 2011.

All Other Fees

For 2010, $30,000 was billed for Consulting Services.  No such other services were rendered for 2011.

The Audit Committee has adopted a policy which requires the Committee’s pre-approval of audit and non-audit
services performed by the independent auditor to assure that the provision of such services does not impair the
auditor’s independence.  The Audit Committee pre-approved all of the audit and non-audit services rendered by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as listed above.
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

Exhibits

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Chemed Corporation.*

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation.*

3.3 By-Laws of Chemed Corporation.*

          10.1 1999 Stock Incentive Plan.*,**

10.2 1999 Long-Term Employee Incentive Plan as amended through May 20, 2002.*,**

10.3 2002 Stock Incentive Plan.*,**

10.4 2002 Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended May 18, 2004.*,**

10.5 2004 Stock Incentive Plan.*,**

 10.6 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended August 11, 2006.*,**

10.7 2010 Stock Incentive Plan.*,**

10.8 Repurchase Agreement dated May 8, 2007 by and among Chemed Corporation, J.P. Morgan Securities
Inc. and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.*

10.9 Convertible Senior Note Indenture dated May 14, 2007 for 1.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014
by and among Chemed Corporation, the Subsidiary Guarantors and LaSalle Bank NA, as Trustee.*

 10.10 Employment Agreement with David P. Williams dated December 1, 2006.*,** 

10.11 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with David P. Williams dated July 9, 2009.*,**

 10.12 Employment Agreement with Timothy S. O’Toole dated May 6, 2007.*,** 

 10.13 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Timothy S. O’Toole dated July 9, 2009.*,**

10.14 Employment Agreement with Kevin J. McNamara dated May 3, 2008.*,**

10.15 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Kevin J. McNamara dated July 9, 2009.*,**

10.16 Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 14, 2007 by and among Chemed Corporation, J.P. Morgan
Securities, Inc. and Citigroup Global Markets Inc.*
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10.17 Confirmation of Convertible Note Hedge, dated May 8, 2007 between Chemed Corporation and J.P.
Morgan Chase Bank, NA.*

10.18 Confirmation of Convertible Note Hedge, dated May 8, 2007 between Chemed Corporation and Citibank,
NA.*

10.19 Form of Convertible Note Warrant Transaction, dated May 8, 2007 between Chemed Corporation and
Citibank NA.*

10.20 Form of Convertible Note Warrant Transaction, dated May 8, 2007 between Chemed Corporation and J.P.
Morgan Chase Bank, NA.*

10.21 Excess Benefits Plan, as restated and amended, effective June 1, 2001.*,**

10.22 Amendment No. 1 to Excess Benefits Plan, effective July 1, 2001.*,**

10.23 Amendment No. 2 to Excess Benefits Plan, effective November 7, 2003.*,**

10.24 Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan.*,**

10.25 Chemed/Roto-Rooter Savings & Retirement Plan, effective January 1, 1999.*,**

10.26 First Amendment to Chemed/Roto-Rooter Savings & Retirement Plan, effective September 6, 2000.*,**

10.27 Second Amendment to Chemed/Roto-Rooter Savings & Retirement Plan, effective January 1, 2001.*,**

10.28 Third Amendment to Chemed/Roto-Rooter Savings & Retirement Plan, effective December 12, 2001.*,**

10.29 Directors Emeriti Plan.*,**

10.30 Chemed Corporation Change in Control Severance Plan, as amended July 9, 2009.*,**

10.31 Chemed Corporation Senior Executive Severance Policy, as amended July 9, 2009.*,**

10.32 Roto-Rooter Deferred Compensation Plan No. 1, as amended January 1, 1998.*,**

10.33 Roto-Rooter Deferred Compensation Plan No. 2.*,**

10.34  Form of Restricted Stock Award.*,**

10.35 Form of Stock Option Grant.*,**

10.36 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement - $350,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility, originally dated May
2, 2007, by and among JP Morgan Chase Bank, NA and Chemed Corporation as of March 1, 2011,
exhibits and schedules thereto. 
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12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

13 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders.

14 Policies on Business Ethics of Chemed Corporation.*

21 Subsidiaries of Chemed Corporation.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

24 Powers of Attorney.

31.1 Certification by Kevin J. McNamara pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2 Certification by David P. Williams pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act of 1934.

31.3 Certification by Arthur V. Tucker, Jr. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act of 1934.

32.1 Certification by Kevin J. McNamara pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification by David P. Williams pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.3 Certification by Arthur V. Tucker, Jr. pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

101.INS XBRL Instance Document*

101.SCH XBRL Extension Schema*

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase*

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase*

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase*

* This exhibit is being filed by means of incorporation by reference (see Index to Exhibits on page
E-1).  Each other exhibit is being filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Financial Statement Schedule

See Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule on page S-1.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

February 27, 2012 CHEMED CORPORATION
By Kevin J. McNamara
Kevin J. McNamara
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Kevin J. McNamara
Kevin J. McNamara

President and Chief
Executive Officer and
a Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

February 27, 2012

/s/ David P. Williams
David P. Williams

Executive Vice President and
Chief
Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

February 27, 2012

/s/ Arthur V. Tucker, Jr.
Arthur V. Tucker, Jr.

Vice President and
Controller
(Principal Accounting
Officer)

February 27, 2012

Joel F. Gemunder*
Patrick P. Grace*
Thomas C. Hutton*
Walter L. Krebs*
Andrea R. Lindell*

Thomas P. Rice*
Donald E. Saunders*
George J Walsh III*
Frank E. Wood*

- - Directors

February 27, 2012

* Naomi C. Dallob by signing her name hereto signs this document on behalf of each of the persons
indicated above pursuant to powers of attorney duly executed by such persons and filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission

February 27, 2012 /s/ Naomi C. Dallob
Date Naomi C. Dallob

(Attorney-in-Fact)
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CHEMED CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
2009, 2010 AND 2011

  Page(s)
Chemed Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 2*
Consolidated Statement of Income 3*
Consolidated Balance Sheet 4*
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 5*
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity 6*
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7-31*

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule S-2
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-3

*              Indicates page numbers in Chemed Corporation 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders

The consolidated financial statements of Chemed Corporation listed above, appearing in the 2011 Annual Report to
Stockholders, are incorporated herein by reference.  The Financial Statement Schedule should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements listed above.  Schedules not included have been omitted because they are
not applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto as listed above.

S-1
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm on Financial Statement Schedule

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Chemed Corporation:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
referred to in our report dated February 27, 2012 appearing in the 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders of Chemed
Corporation (which report and consolidated financial statements are incorporated by reference in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K) also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15 of this Form 10-K.  In our
opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein
when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
February 27, 2012

S-2
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SCHEDULE II

CHEMED CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

 (IN THOUSANDS)
 DR/(CR)

ADDITIONS
(CHARGED)
CREDITED (CHARGED)

BALANCE
AT TO COSTS CREDITED BALANCE

BEGINNING AND TO OTHER DEDUCTIONS AT END

 DESCRIPTION OF PERIOD EXPENSES ACCOUNTS (a)
OF

PERIOD
 Allowances for doubtful
 accounts (b)

   For the year 2011 $ (13,332 ) $(8,686 ) $ (786 ) $11,280 $(11,524 )

   For the year 2010 $ (12,595 ) $(9,118 ) $ (472 ) $8,853 $(13,332 )

   For the year 2009 $ (10,320 ) $(10,861 ) $ (656 ) $9,242 $(12,595 )

 Allowances for doubtful
 accounts - notes
 receivable (c)

   For the year 2011 $ (368 ) $123 $ (60 ) $- $(305 )

   For the year 2010 $ (408 ) $40 $ - $- $(368 )

   For the year 2009 $ (482 ) $28 $ 44 $2 $(408 )

(a) With respect to allowances for doubtful accounts, deductions include accounts considered uncollectible or
written off, payments, companies divested, etc.

(b) Classified in consolidated balance sheet as a reduction of accounts receivable.

(c) Classified in consolidated balance sheet as a reduction of other assets.

S-3
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Page Number
or
Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit File No. and Previous
Number Filing Date Exhibit No.

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Form S-3 4.1
Chemed Corporation Reg. No. 33-44177

11/26/91 

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Form 8-K 3.1
Certificate of Incorporation 5/16/06

 3.3 By-Laws of Chemed Corporation Form 8-K 3.1
as amended November 10, 2009 11/13/09

10.1 1999 Stock Incentive Plan Form 10-K 10.11
3/29/00, **

10.2 1999 Long Term Employee Form 10-K 10.16
Incentive Plan as amended 3/28/03, **
through May 20, 2002

10.3 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Form 10-K 10.17
3/28/03, **

10.4 2002 Executive Long-Term Form 10-Q 10.16
Incentive Plan, as amended 8/19/04, **
May 18, 2004

10.5 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Proxy Statement A
3/25/04, **

10.6 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, Form 10-Q 10.1
as amended August 11, 2006 8/14/06, **

10.7 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Form 8-K 99.1
5/18/10, **

10.8 Repurchase Agreement dated Form 8-K 1.1
May 8, 2007 by and among 5/17/07
Chemed Corporation, J.P.
Morgan Securities Inc. and
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

10.9 Convertible Senior Note Form 8-KA 4.1
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Indenture dated May 14, 2007 5/22/07
for 1.875% Convertible Senior
Notes due 2014 by and among
Chemed Corporation, the
Subsidiary Guarantors and
LaSalle Bank NA, as Trustee.

10.10 Employment Agreement with David Form 8-K 10.01
P. Williams dated December 1, 2006. 12/1/06, **
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Page Number
or
Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit File No. and Previous
Number Filing Date Exhibit No.

10.11 First Amendment to Employment Form 10-Q 10.02
Agreement with David P. Williams 7/31/09, **
dated July 9, 2009.

10.12 Employment Agreement with Form 8-K 10.02
Timothy S. O’Toole dated 5/7/07, **
May 6, 2007.

10.13 First Amendment to Employment Form 10-Q 10.3
Agreement with Timothy S. 7/31/09, **
O’Toole dated July 9, 2009.

10.14 Employment Agreement with Form 8-K 10.01
Kevin J. McNamara dated 5/6/08, **
May 3, 2008.

10.15 First Amendment to Employment Form 10-Q 10.1
Agreement with Kevin J. 7/31/09, **
McNamara dated July 9, 2009.

10.16 Registration Rights Agreement, Form 8-K 10.5
dated May 14, 2007 by and among 5/17/07
Chemed Corporation, J.P. Morgan
Securities, Inc. and Citigroup
Global Markets Inc.

10.17 Confirmation of Convertible Note Form 8-K 10.1
Hedge, dated May 8, 2007 between 5/17/07
Chemed Corporation and J.P. Morgan
Chase Bank, NA.

10.18 Confirmation of Convertible Note Form 8-K 10.2
Hedge, dated May 8, 2007 between 5/17/07
Chemed Corporation and Citibank,
NA.

10.19 Form of Convertible Note Warrant Form 8-K 10.4
Transaction, dated May 8, 2007 5/17/07
between Chemed Corporation and
Citibank, NA.

10.20 Form of Convertible Note Warrant Form 8-K 10.5
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Transaction, dated May 8, 2007 5/17/07
between Chemed Corporation and
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, NA.

10.21 Excess Benefits Plan, as restated Form 10-K 10.24
and amended, effective June 1, 2001 3/12/04, **

10.22 Amendment No. 1 to Excess Benefits Form 10-K 10.25
Plan, effective July 1, 2002 3/12/04, **
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Page Number
or
Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit File No. and Previous
Number Filing Date Exhibit No.

10.23 Amendment No. 2 to Excess Benefits Form 10-K 10.26
Plan, effective November 7, 2003 3/12/04, **

10.24 Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Form 10-K 10.10
Compensation Plan 3/24/88, **

10.25 Chemed/Roto-Rooter Savings & Form 10-K 10.25
Retirement Plan, effective 3/25/99, **
January 1, 1999

10.26 First Amendment to Chemed/ Form 10-K 10.22
Roto-Rooter Savings & Retirement 3/28/02, **
Plan effective September 6, 2000

10.27 Second Amendment to Chemed/ Form 10-K 10.23
Roto-Rooter Savings & Retirement 3/28/02, **
Plan effective January 1, 2001

10.28 Third Amendment to Chemed/ Form 10-K 10.24
Roto-Rooter Savings & Retirement 3/28/02, **
Plan effective December 12, 2001

10.29 Directors Emeriti Plan Form 10-Q 10.11
5/12/88, **

10.30 Change in Control Severance Form 10-Q 10.05
Plan as amended July 9, 2009. 7/31/09, **

10.31 Senior Executive Severance Form 10-Q 10.04
Policy as amended July 9, 2009. 7/31/09, **

10.32 Roto-Rooter Deferred Compensation Form 10-K 10.37
Plan No. 1, as amended January 1, 3/28/01, **
1998

10.33 Roto-Rooter Deferred Compensation Form 10-K 10.38
Plan No. 2 3/28/01, **

10.34 Form of Restricted Stock Award Form 10-K 10.50
3/28/05, **

10.35 Form of Stock Option Grant Form 10-K 10.51
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3/28/05, **

10.36 Amended and Restated Credit Form 10-Q 10.1
Agreement - $350,000,000 Revolving 4/29/11
Credit Facility, originally dated
May 2, 2007, by and among JP Morgan
Chase Bank, N.A. and Chemed
Corporation as of March 1, 2011,
Exhibits and schedules thereto.
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Page Number
or
Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit File No. and Previous
Number Filing Date Exhibit No.

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings *
to Fixed Charges

13 2011 Annual Report to Stockholders *

14 Policies on Business Ethics of Form 10-K 14
Chemed Corporation 3/12/04

21 Subsidiaries of Chemed Corporation *

23 Consent of Independent Registered *
Public Accounting Firm

24 Powers of Attorney *

31.1 Certification by Kevin J. McNamara *
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
of the Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2 Certification by David P. Williams *
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
of the Exchange Act of 1934.

31.3 Certification by Arthur V. Tucker, Jr. *
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
of the Exchange Act of 1934.

32.1 Certification by Kevin J. McNamara *
pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification by David P. Williams *
pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.3 Certification by Arthur V. Tucker, *
Jr. pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document *

101.SCH XBRL Extension Schema *
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101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation *
Linkbase

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label *
Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation *
Linkbase

* Filed herewith.

** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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